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VISION STATEMENT

To develop into a leading small venture Islamic Financial Institution that
will actively participate in the management of projects in addition to the
conventional mode of Modaraba activities.

MISSION STATEMENT

Engage in activities that will maximize return on investment through
Shariah mode of financing for Certificate holders of the Modaraba.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT

Dear Modaraba Certificate Holders,
As required under the code of corporate Governance, an annual
evaluation of the Board of Directors of Crescent Modaraba
Management Company Limited Manager of First Elite Capital
Modaraba has been carried out. The objective of this evaluation is to
measure the Board's overall performance and effectiveness.
For the Financial year ended June 30, 2020, the Board's overall
performance and effectiveness have been assessed as satisfactory.
Improvements are an ongoing process leading to an action plan.
The Board of Directors received agendas and supporting papers in a
timely manner for its meeting and decisions. All directors fully
participated in and made contributions to the decision making
process of the Board. The Board has in place policies for all relevant
areas of the company's operations.
I would like to thank all the Board members for the cooperation and
support.
On behalf of the Board, I take this opportunity to thank Registrar of
Modaraba, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and
other relevant regulatory bodies for their continued guidance and
support.

Muneeb Ahmed Dar
Chairman
September 30, 2020
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS
Valued Certificate Holders
The Board of Directors of Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited, manager of
First Elite Capital Modaraba presents the 29th annual audited accounts of the Modaraba for
the year ended June 30, 2020.
Financial Results
Financial results for the year ended June 30, 2020 are summarized as below:
June 30,
2020
Rupees

June 30,
2019
Rupees

Total Income of Modaraba

38,367,381

41,778,097

Depreciation of Assets Leased Out
Administrative & General Expenses
Financial Charges
Management Fee
Taxation

28,203,865
15,224,260
3,435
(208,032)

28,362,872
17,296,148
9,312
(480,268)

Loss after Taxation

(5,272,211)

(4,370,503)

(0.46)

(0.39)

Loss per certificate basic and diluted
Profit Distribution

Keeping in view the loss for the year, the Modaraba is not in a position to distribute any
dividend this year.
Review of Operations
During the period under review, the Modaraba has made after tax loss of Rs.5,272,211 as
compared to loss of Rs.4,370,503 in the corresponding period of preceding year. Like other
Industries the Modaraba sector has also been affected as a result of the lock down due to
COVID-19. Funds generated from operations were efficiently deployed in Ijarah, investment
in listed securities and trading business and earned gross revenue of Rs.38,367,381/= during
the year.
Administrative expenses were effectively controlled and decreased by Rs.2,071,888/=
(11.98%) in spite of high inflation rate. Due to loss in current year, the Modaraba is not in a
position to transfer any amount to statutory reserves as required under prudential
regulations for Modarabas.
Certificate holders equity of your Modaraba stood at Rs.106,904,750.
Economy
The economic situation of Pakistan is passing through a tough time. During the fiscal year
Major economic indicators declined while others showed either gloomy picture or stagnant
situation. The growth rate fell down in fiscal year. It is expected that growth rate will further
go down in current fiscal year. Downside risks to growth include a second wave of COVID-19
in Pakistan, rise in infections in major export markets in Europe/US, and locust attacks on
agriculture produce.
The State Bank of Pakistan and all other concerned authorities are taking preemptive
measures to counter the economic and financial challenges faced by the economy due to
COVID-19. The State Bank of Pakistan lowered the policy rate by 625 bps to seven percent.
The decision of rate cut was well supported by the economic fundamentals such as inflation
slide down. However a key threat to inflation remains the upward revision in the electricity
and gas tariffs. Another positive move on economic front has been decrease in Current
Account Deficit. The business confidence has been improved due to timely provision of the
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stimulus packages by the government and the state bank of Pakistan. The faster global
economic recovery would stimulate exports majorly and improve our growth.
Future outlook
Keeping in view the current market situation, the Management of the Modaraba will very
carefully deploy the available resources in its core activities i.e. Ijarah, Murabahah and
investment in listed securities. The Management of the Modaraba will also explore new
profitable avenues of business and continue its commodity trading business to improve the
performance of the Modaraba. The Management will pay special attention to defaulter clients
for recovery of receivables.
Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
·The Financial statements, prepared by the management of the Modaraba,
present fairly its true state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.
·Proper books of accounts of the Modaraba have been maintained.
·Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.
·International financial reporting standards, as applicable to Modaraba in
Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements and any
departures therefrom has been adequately disclosed and explained.
·The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored.
·There are no significant doubts upon the Modaraba's ability to continue as a going
concern.
·The Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor
children do not hold any interest in the certificates of Modaraba, other than that
disclosed in the pattern of certificate holding.
·During the year under review four meetings of the Board of Directors were held.
Attendance by each Director is as follows:Name of Director

Number of Meetings Attended

I.

Mr. Aamir Iftikhar Khan

4

II.

Dr. Sardar Ahmad Khan

4

III.

Mr. Ghazanfar Farrokh

4

IV.

Mr. Muhammad Javed Amin

4

V.

Mr. Muneeb Ahmed Dar

4

VI.

Mrs. Rukhsana Javed Amin

4

VII.

Mrs. Shahana Javed Amin

4

·During the year under review four meetings of the Audit Committee were held.
Mr. Ghazanfar Farrokh, Chairman Mr. Muneeb Ahmed Dar, Member and Mrs.
Shahana Javed Amin, Member attended all the four meetings.
·During the year under review one meeting of the Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee was held. Mr. Muneeb Ahmed Dar, Chairman Mr.
Ghazanfar Farrokh, Member and Mr. Aamir Iftikhar Khan, Member attended the
meeting.
Pattern of Certificate Holding
A statement reflecting the pattern of holding of the certificates as on June 30, 2020 is
annexed to this Report.
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Key Operating & Financial Data
A statement summarizing key operating and financial data for the last six years is attached to
the Annual Report.
The Board of Directors
The total number of directors are 7 as per the following
a)

Male:

5

b)

Female:

2

The composition of board is as follows:
Name
Mr. Muneeb Ahmed Dar

Category
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Aamir Iftikhar Khan

Executive Director

Dr. Sardar Ahmad Khan

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ghazanfar Farrokh

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Muhammad Javed Amin

Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Rukhsana Javed Amin

Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Shahana Javed Amin

Non-Executive Director

Director's Remuneration
Through the Articles of the company, the Board of Directors is authorized to fix remuneration
of Non-Executive and independent Directors from time to time. In this regard the board of
Directors has developed a Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive and independent Directors
of the Company.
Auditors
The board has approved the appointment of M/s Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co.
Chartered Accountants for the year 2020-2021 subject to the approval of the Registrar of
Modaraba Companies & Modarabas.
Acknowledgement
The Board thanks the regulatory authorities for their continuous guidance and co-operation
and places on record its appreciation of the services rendered by the staff members for their
hard work, dedication and commitment in discharge of their responsibilities in a difficult
situation.

On behalf of the Board

AAMIR IFTIKHAR KHAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Date: September 30, 2020
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MUNEEB AHMED DAR
CHAIRMAN

2020

30
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS
We have audited the annexed balance sheet of FIRST ELITE CAPITAL MODARABA (“the
Modaraba”) as at June 30, 2020 and the related profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cash flows statement and statement of changes in equity together
with the notes forming part thereof (hereinafter referred to as the financial statements), for the
year then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
These financial statements are the Modaraba Company's (Crescent Modaraba
Management Company Limited) responsibility who is also responsible to establish and
maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in
conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance,
1980 (XXXI of 1980), and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan.
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by the modaraba company, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion
and, after due verification, we report thata)

in our opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Modaraba Company in
respect of First Elite Capital Modaraba as required by the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980), and the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules,1981;

b)

in our opinion:
i.

the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) and the Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, and are in agreement with the books of
accounts and are further in agreement with accounting policies consistently applied

ii.

the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the modaraba's
business; and

iii.

the business conducted, investments made, and the expenditure incurred during
the year were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the
modaraba;

c)

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to - us, the balance sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income,
cash flows statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming
part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and
give the information required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and
Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of 1980) and the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
Rules, 1981 in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the modaraba's affairs as at June 30, 2020 and of the loss, comprehensive loss, its
cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d)

in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance,
1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Shahid Mohsin Shaikh - FCA
Date: September 30, 2020
Place: Lahore
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020
Note

June 30,
2020
Rupees

June 30,
2019
Rupees

4
5

19,171,190
11,593,818

6,623,240
11,157,923

6

405,244

557,244

7
8
9

1,016,403
3,267,753
48,738

2,516,403
2,155,571
30,139

10
11
12

3,863,996
1,847,438
5,170,619

4,388,602
1,876,598
7,355,825

46,385,199

36,661,545

108,087,632
26,624,074

118,322,418
27,285,304

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Short term finances under musharakah
arrangements - Secured
Short term finances under murabahah
arrangements - Secured
Ijarah rentals receivable - Secured
Profit receivable - Secured
Advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Advance income tax
Stock in Trade

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Assets leased out under ijarah contracts
Property and equipment

13
14

TOTAL ASSETS

134,711,706

145,607,722

181,096,905

182,269,267

1,955,846
7,308,977
8,187,946

2,512,700
4,148,996
8,200,937

17,452,769

14,862,633

47,672,723
9,066,663

45,701,099
8,458,040

56,739,386

54,159,139

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued and other liabilities
Security deposits
Unclaimed profit distribution

15
16

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Security deposits
Employees retirement benefits

Contingencies and commitments

16
17

18

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

-

-

74,192,155

69,021,772

106,904,750

113,247,495

200,000,000

200,000,000

113,400,000
(28,529,847)
22,034,597

113,400,000
(23,763,891)
23,611,386

106,904,750

113,247,495

REPRESENTED BY
Authorized certificate capital
20,000,000 (2019: 20,000,000)
modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up certificate capital
Unappropriated losses
Other reserves

19
20

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited
(Management Company of First Elite Capital Modaraba)

Chairman

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Financial Officer
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Note

June 30,
2020
Rupees

June 30,
2019
Rupees

21
22
23

33,617,407
202,724
1,397,662

37,288,680
412,234
3,617,327

24

48,251
2,566,272
535,065

24,618
435,238

38,367,381

41,778,097

(28,203,865)
(15,224,260)
(3,435)

(28,362,872)
(17,296,148)
(9,312)

(43,431,560)

(45,668,332)

(5,064,179)

(3,890,235)

INCOME
Income from ijarah financing
Income from murabahah financing
Return on investments
Reversal of provision for doubtful
Murabahah Finance
Trading Income
Other income

EXPENSES
Depreciation of assets leased out
under ijarah contracts
Administrative and general expenses
Financial charges

Management fee

13
25

26

Loss before taxation

-

-

(5,064,179)

Taxation

27

Loss after taxation
Loss per certificate basic and diluted

(3,890,235)

(208,032)

(480,268)

(5,272,211)

(4,370,503)

(0.46)

(0.39)

28

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited
(Management Company of First Elite Capital Modaraba)

Chairman

14

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Financial Officer

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Note
(Loss)/Profit after taxation

June 30,
2020
Rupees

June 30,
2019
Rupees

(5,272,211)

(4,370,503)

(1,576,789)

(7,158,591)

-

-

(1,576,789)

(7,158,591)

Other comprehensive loss
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in fair value of available
for sale investments
Reclassification adjustments for
(gain)/ loss included in profit or loss

Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plan
Total comprehensive (loss)/income

17.3

506,255

233,325

(6,342,745)

(11,295,769)

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited
(Management Company of First Elite Capital Modaraba)

Chairman

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Financial Officer

15

CASH FLOWS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Note

June 30,
2020
Rupees

June 30,
2019
Rupees

29

31,233,389

29,436,374

(178,872)
(26,294,500)
8,587,146
(171,200)
(12,991)

(238,587)
(52,215,500)
20,533,710
(2,083,700)
(3,023,774)

(18,070,417)

(37,027,851)

13,162,972

(7,591,477)

(4,352,335)
3,249,499
487,814

(54,000)
(6,298,792)
5,155,711
1,173,223

(615,022)

(23,858)

Receipts/(payments) for:
Income taxes
Purchase of Ijarah assets
Transfer of Ijarah assets
Staff retirement benefits paid
Profit distribution

Net cash (used in)/ generated
from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Dividend received
Net cash (used in)/ generated from
investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

-

NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

12,547,950

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR

30

(7,615,335)

6,623,240

14,238,575

19,171,190

6,623,240

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited
(Management Company of First Elite Capital Modaraba)

Chairman

16

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Financial Officer

17

-

Chairman

-

-

(9,983,417)

(1,576,789)

(1,576,789)

(8,406,628)

(7,158,591)

(7,158,591)

-

(1,248,037)

Rupees

Chief Executive

Director

For Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited
(Management Company of First Elite Capital Modaraba)

32,018,014

-

113,400,000

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Balance as at June 30, 2020

Loss after taxation
Other comprehensive (loss) / income

Comprehensive loss for the year ended June 30, 2020

32,018,014

113,400,000

-

Balance as at June 30, 2019

-

-

Profit distribution @ 3.00% i.e. Re. 0.30 per certificate

-

32,018,014

Rupees

Rupees

113,400,000

Statutory
reserve

Reserves
Available for
sale financial
assets

Capital Reserves
Paid-up
Certificate
Capital

Comprehensive loss for the year ended June 30, 2019
Loss after taxation
Other comprehensive (loss) / income

Transaction with owners

Balance as at June 30, 2018

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(28,529,847)

(4,765,956)

(5,272,211)
506,255

(23,763,891)

(4,137,178)

(4,370,503)
233,325

(3,402,000)

(16,224,713)

Rupees

Unappropriated
losses

Revenue Reserves

106,904,750

(6,342,745)

(5,272,211)
(1,070,534)

113,247,495

(11,295,769)

(4,370,503)
(6,925,266)

(3,402,000)

127,945,264

Rupees

Total equity

Chief Financial Officer

(6,495,250)

(6,342,745)

(5,272,211)
(1,070,534)

(152,505)

(11,295,769)

(4,370,503)
(6,925,266)

(3,402,000)

14,545,264

Rupees

Total

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
1

STATUS AND NATURE OF THE BUSINESS
First Elite Capital Modaraba ("the Modaraba") is a perpetual, multi-purpose and multidimensional modaraba formed under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation
and Control) Ordinance, 1980 and the Rules framed there under and is managed by
Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited ("the Management Company"), a
company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017, vide Registration No. L
01630 dated 30th May, 1989. The registered office of the Modaraba is situated at 50-A,
Garden Block, New Garden Town, Lahore. The Modaraba was floated on September 26,
1991 and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Modaraba is primarily engaged
in the business of ijarah, musharakah and murabahah financing, investment in marketable
securities, trading of stock and other related businesses.

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1

Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control)
Ordinance, 1980 ("the Ordinance"), the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules,
1981 ("the Rules"), Prudential Regulations for Modarabas ("the Regulations") and
other directives ("the Directives") issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan together with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan to Modarabas. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), the International Accounting
Standards ("IAS") and the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards ("IFAS") as
notified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and made applicable to
modarabas under the Ordinance, the Rules, the Regulations and the Directives. The
requirements of the Ordinance, the Rules, the Regulations or the Directives take
precedence wherever they differ from the requirements of approved standards.
Further, where the requirements of IFAS differ from the requirements of other
approved standards, the IFASs take precedence.
SECP vide its circular no. 10 of 2004 dated 13 February 2004, had deferred, till
further orders, the applicability of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 17
"Leases" on Modarabas with effect from 1 July 2003 and advised the management
companies of Modarabas that they may continue to prepare the financial
statements of the Modarabas without applying the requirements of IAS 17 to the
Modarabas. However, the requirements of IAS 17 were considered for the purpose
of leasing transactions (net investment in finance lease, assets given on finance
lease, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, and assets obtained on
finance lease entered into by the Modaraba upto 30 June 2008. From 1 July 2008, all
new lease transactions (both for assets given and assets obtained) are being
accounted for in accordance with the requirements of IFAS 2 as explained
hereunder. Islamic Financial Accounting Standard 2 'Ijarah' issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan was adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan ('the SECP') vide SRO 431(1)/ 2007 dated 22 May 2007.
During the year ended 30 June 2009, SECP vide its letter no. SC/M/RW/SC/2009
dated 9 March 2009, directed that the management companies of Modarabas may
apply the accounting treatment of IFAS 2, only to the leasing (Ijarah) transactions
entered on or after 1 July 2008. Under the above IFAS 2, the 'Ijarah' transactions are
accounted for in the following manner:
- Mustajir (lessor) presents the assets subject to Ijarah in their balance sheet
according to the nature of the asset, distinguished from the assets in own use.
- Costs, including depreciation on the assets given on Ijarah, incurred in earning the
Ijarah income are recognized as expenses.
- Ijarah income is recognized in income on an accrual basis as and when the rental
becomes due, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which the benefit of the use derived from the leased asset is diminished.
Consequently, in preparation of these financial statements the Modaraba has
accounted for leasing transactions executed before 1 July 2008 as finance leases
consistent with prior years and has treated leasing transactions executed on or after
1 July 2008 in accordance with the requirements of IFAS 2.
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2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments at fair value/amortized cost and employees
retirement benefits at present value. In these financial statements, except for the
cash flow statement, all transactions have been accounted for on accrual basis.
Judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions and judgments are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the result of which forms the basis of making judgments about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Subsequently, actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected. Judgments made by management in the application of
approved accounting standards that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a risk of material adjustment in subsequent years
are as follows:
2.3.1 Recoverable amount and impairment
The Modaraba reviews carrying amounts of its assets for possible
impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is
any such indication. Investments in marketable securities are tested for
impairment by reference to their prices in the active market. An allowance
for impairment is made for all investments for which there is an indication
of permanent diminution in market values. Musharakah, Murabahah and
Ijarah finances, and related other receivables are tested for impairment
taking into account the borrowers' payment/credit history, adequacy of
security and requirements of Prudential Regulations for Modarabas.
2.3.2 Depreciation method, rates and useful lives of property and
equipment
The Modaraba reassesses useful lives, depreciation method and rates for
each item of property and equipment annually by considering expected
pattern of economic benefits that the Modaraba expects to derive from that
item.
2.3.3 Obligation under defined benefit plan
The Modaraba's obligation under the defined benefit plan is based on
assumptions of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of
increases in remuneration, remaining working lives of employees and
discount rates to be used to determine present value of defined benefit
obligation.
2.3.4 Provisions
Provisions, other than allowances for impairment, are based on best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date, that is, the amount that the Modaraba would rationally pay
to settle the obligation at the reporting date or to transfer it to a third party.
Functional currency
These financial statements are prepared in Pak Rupees which is the Modaraba's
functional currency.
NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS BECOME
EFFECTIVE
The Company has adopted the following amendments in accounting standard and
interpretation of IFRSs which became effective for the current year:
IAS 7 – Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)
IAS 12 – Income Taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized losses
(Amendments)
IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IAS 19 – Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments)
IFRS 16 – Lease, COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments)
IFRIC 23 – Uncertainty over income tax treatments
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IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities – Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014–2016 Cycle
IFRS 9– Financial Instruments
Further, to facilitate implementation, subsequently the SECP through SRO 229 (1402-2019) modified the effective date for applicability of IFRS 9 as ‘Reporting period
/ Year ending on or after June 30, 2019 (earlier application is permitted).
Furthermore, through SRO 985(I)/2019 (02-09-2019) , in respect of companies
holding financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan, the requirements
contained in “IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments) with respect to application of Expected
Credit Losses method” shall not be applicable till 30th June, 2021, provided that such
companies shall follow relevant requirements of IAS 39 – Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, in respect of above referred financial assets during
the exemption period.
The adoption of the above amendments, and improvements to accounting
standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial statements.
2.6 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
2.6.1 The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with
respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective
standards or interpretation:
Standards, amendments or Interpretation
IFRS - 17
Insurance Contracts
2.6.2 Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which
are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in
Pakistan.
Standards, amendments or Interpretation
IFRS - 17
Insurance Contracts
The Company expects that the adoption of the above standards will have no
material effect on the Company's financial statements.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in the financial statements.
3.1 Property and equipment
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") 15 "Revenue From Contracts
with Customers" which provides a unified five-step model for determining the
timing, measurement and recognition of revenue. The focus of the new standard is
to recognize revenue as performance obligations are made rather than based on the
transfer of risk and rewards. IFRS 15 includes a comprehensive set of disclosure
requirements including qualitative and quantitative information about contracts with
customers to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue.
The standard supersedes IAS 18 "Revenue", IAS 11 "Construction Contracts" and
the number of revenue related interpretations.
The Modaraba has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of IFRS
15 as allowed under the Standard. This method requires the recognition of the
cumulative effect (without practical expedients) of initially applying IFRS 15 to
retained earnings. Under this transition method, comparative information for prior
periods has not been restated and continues to be reported in accordance with the
previous standard under
IAS 18 and related interpretations.
Apart from providing more extensive disclosures, the application of IFRS 15 has not
had a significant impact on the financial position and / or financial performance of
the Modaraba. Accordingly, there was no adjustment to retained earnings on
application of IFRS 15 at 1 July 2019.
3.2 Property and equipment
These comprise operating fixed assets of the Modaraba.
Operating fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, and includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction, erection and installation.

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

Major renewals and improvements to operating fixed assets are recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the embodied future economic
benefits will flow to the Modaraba and the cost of renewal or improvement can be
measured reliably. The cost of the day-to-day servicing of operating fixed assets are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
The Modaraba recognizes depreciation in profit or loss by applying reducing balance
method over the useful life of each operating fixed asset using rates specified in note
14 to the financial statements.
An operating fixed asset is de-recognized when permanently retired from use. Any
gain or loss on disposal of operating fixed assets is recognized in profit or loss.
Assets leased out under ijarah contracts
Assets leased out are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
recognized in profit or loss over the period of lease by applying straight line method.
In respect of additions and sales / transfers during the year, amortization is charged
proportionately to the period of lease.
Certificate capital
Certificate capital is recognized as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of certificates are recognized as deduction from the equity.
Employees retirement benefits
3.5.1
Short term employee benefits
The Modaraba recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term
employee benefits to be paid in exchange for services rendered by
employees as a liability after deducting amount already paid and as an
expense in profit or loss. If the amount paid exceeds the undiscounted
amount of benefits, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent
that the prepayment would lead to a reduction in future payments or
cash refund.
3.5.2
Post employment benefits
The Modaraba operates an unfunded gratuity scheme (defined benefit
plan) for all its employees who have completed the minimum qualifying
service period. The amount recognized on balance sheet represents the
present value of defined benefit obligation. Actuarial gains or loss are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income as required by
IAS-19 Employee Benefits. The details of the scheme are referred to in
note 17 to the financial statements.
Financial instruments
3.6.1
Recognition
A financial instrument is recognized when the Modaraba becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
3.6.2
Classification
The Modaraba classifies its financial instruments into following classes
depending on the purpose for which the financial assets and liabilities
are acquired or incurred. The Modaraba determines the classification of
its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition.
3.6.2(a) Loans and receivables
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables. Assets in this category
are presented as current assets except for maturities
greater than twelve months from the reporting date, where
these are presented as non-current assets.
3.6.2(b) Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as such on initial
recognition or are not classified as loans and receivables,
held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Assets in this category are presented
as non-current assets unless the management intends to
dispose of the asset within twelve months from the
reporting date. The particular measurement methods
adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with each instrument.
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3.6.2(c) Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Non-derivative financial liabilities that are not financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
financial liabilities at amortized cost. Financial liabilities in
this category are presented as current liabilities except for
maturities greater than twelve months from the reporting
date where these are presented as non-current liabilities.
3.6.3

Measurement
The particular measurement methods adopted are disclosed in the
individual policy statements associated with each instrument.

3.6.4

De-recognition
Financial assets are de-recognized if the Modaraba's contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial assets expire or if the Modaraba
transfers the financial asset to another party without retaining control or
substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. Financial liabilities are
de-recognized if the Modaraba's obligations specified in the contract
expire or are discharged or cancelled. Any gain or loss on de-recognition
of financial assets and financial liabilities is recognized in profit or loss.

3.6.5

Off-setting
A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet if the Modaraba has legally enforceable
right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a
net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.6.6

"Regular way" purchases and sales of financial assets
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on
trade date. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are those
contracts which require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by the regulation or convention in the market.

3.7

Investments in listed securities
Investments in listed equity and other securities, which are intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response to need for liquidity or
significant changes in equity prices are classified as 'available for sale financial
assets'. On initial recognition these are measured at cost, being their fair value on
date of acquisition, plus attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized
as other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognized or impaired.
Gains and losses on de-recognition and impairment losses are recognized in profit or
loss.

3.8

Accrued and other liabilities
3.8.1

Financial liabilities
These are classified as 'financial liabilities at amortized cost'. On initial
recognition, these are measured at cost, being their fair value at the
date the liability is incurred, less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, with interest recognized in profit or
loss.

3.8.2

Non-financial liabilities
These, both on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at
cost.

3.9

Advances and other receivables
3.9.1

Financial assets
These are classified as 'loans and receivables'. On initial recognition,
these are measured at cost, being their fair value at the date of
transaction, less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, with interest recognized in profit or loss.

3.9.2

Non-financial assets
These, on initial recognition and subsequently, are measured at cost.
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3.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and cash at banks. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at cost.
3.11 Revenue
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") 15 "Revenue From Contracts
with Customers" which provides a unified five-step model for determining the
timing, measurement and recognition of revenue. The focus of the new standard is
to recognize revenue as performance obligations are made rather than based on the
transfer of risk and rewards. IFRS 15 includes a comprehensive set of disclosure
requirements including qualitative and quantitative information about contracts
with customers to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue. The standard supersedes IAS 18 "Revenue", IAS 11 "Construction
Contracts" and the number of revenue related interpretations.
The Modaraba has applied the modified retrospective method upon adoption of IFRS
15 as allowed under the Standard. This method requires the recognition of the
cumulative effect (without practical expedients) of initially applying IFRS 15 to
retained earnings. Under this transition method, comparative information for prior
periods has not been restated and continues to be reported in accordance with the
previous standard under
IAS 18 and related interpretations.
Apart from providing more extensive disclosures, the application of IFRS 15 has not
had a significant impact on the financial position and / or financial performance of
the Modaraba. Accordingly, there was no adjustment to retained earnings on
application of IFRS 15 at 1 July 2019.
Revenue from different sources is recognized as follows:
Ijarah rentals are recognized over the period of lease as and when the related rentals
become due.
Profit on murabahah finances is recognized on time proportion basis as and when
accrued.
Profit on musharakah finances is recognized on time proportion basis as and when
accrued.
Trading Income is recognized on time proportion basis as and when accrued.
Return on saving accounts is recognized on time proportion basis as and when
accrued.
Dividend income is recognized when right to receive payment is established.
3.12 Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or
operational decisions and include holding company, associated companies with or
without common directors, directors and major shareholders and their close family
members, key management personnel and staff and retirement benefit funds.
3.13 Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income is the change in equity resulting from transactions and other
events, other than changes resulting from transactions with shareholders in their
capacity as shareholders. Total comprehensive income comprises all components of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income
comprises items of income and expense, including reclassification adjustments, that
are not recognized in profit or loss as required or permitted by approved accounting
standards, and is presented in 'statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income'.
3.14 Income tax
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized
directly in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in other
comprehensive income.
3.14.1
Current taxation
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years.
Provision for current tax is based on current rates of taxation in Pakistan
after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions available,
if any. The amount of unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior
periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in
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respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as an asset.
Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet approach
providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for tax purposes. In this regard, the effects on deferred taxation of
the portion of income that is subject to final tax regime is also
considered in accordance with the treatment prescribed by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. Deferred tax is measured at rates
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date. A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible
temporary differences to the extent that future taxable profits will be
available against which temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized. However, the Modaraba has not recognised any amount in
respect of deferred tax in these financial statements as the Modaraba
intends to continue availing the tax exemption in future years by
distributing at least 90% of its profits to its certificate holders every year.
3.15 Earnings per certificate (EPC)
Basic EPC is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to certificate holders
of the Modaraba by the weighted average number of certificates outstanding during
the period.
Diluted EPC is calculated by adjusting basic EPC by the weighted average number of
certificates that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential certificates
into certificates and post-tax effect of changes in profit or loss attributable to
certificate holders of the Modaraba that would result from conversion of all dilutive
potential certificates into certificates.
3.16 Impairment
3.16.1
Financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any objective evidence that it is impaired. Individually
significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual
basis. The remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups
that share similar credit risk characteristics. A financial asset is
considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or
more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of the asset.
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized
cost is calculated as the difference between its carrying amount, and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. Impairment loss in respect of a financial
asset measured at fair value is determined by reference to that fair
value. All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment
losses in respect of Musharakah, Murabahah and Ijarah finances are
determined by reference to the borrowers' payment/ credit history,
adequacy of security and requirements of the Prudential Regulations for
Modarabas. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
financial asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortization,
if no impairment loss had been recognized.
3.16.2
Non-financial assets
The carrying amount of the Modaraba’s non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset
or cash generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
3.14.2
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3.17

3.18

3.19

money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or
its cash generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis.
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each
reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used in determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying
amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if
no impairment loss had been recognized.
Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a legal and
constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of obligation. Provision is recognized at an amount that is the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date. Where outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the
possibility of outflow is remote.
Profit distribution to certificate holders
Profit distribution to certificate holders is recognized as a deduction
from accumulated profit in statement of changes in equity and as a
liability, to the extent it is unclaimed/unpaid, in the Modaraba’s financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Board
of Directors of the Management Company.
Stock in trade
Stock in trade is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of
stock in trade is based on weighted average cost and net realizable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Note
4

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

Rupees

Rupees

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand

156,705

57,944

Cash at bank
Current accounts
Saving / deposit accounts

4.1
5

4.1

299,844

319,853

18,714,641

6,245,443

19,014,485

6,565,296

19,171,190

6,623,240

Effective rate of return on deposit/saving accounts, for the year, ranges from
6.75% to 10.25% (2019: 4% to 7%).

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
These represent investments in listed securities and have been classified as available
for sale financial assets.
Cost

5.1

25,313,625

23,300,941

Accumulated changes in fair value
(trading suspended)

(3,736,390)

(3,736,390)

Accumulated changes in fair value
(others)

(9,983,417)

(8,406,628)

11,593,818

11,157,923

5.1
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5.1 Particulars of investments

Engineering
Cresent Steel & Allied Products Limited
Fertilizer
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited
Cements
Gharibwal Cement Company Limited
Fauji Cement Company Limited
Textile Composite
Sunrise Textiles Limited
Technology & Communication
Callmate Telips Telecom Limited
Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited
Cable and Electrical Goods
Pak Electron Limited
Power Generation
Hub Power Company Limited
Oil & Gas marketing Co.
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited
Pakistan Petrolium Limited
Sui Southern Gas Pipelines Limited
Oil and Gas Development Company Limited
Investment Banks/Co.
Dadabhoy Leasing Company Limited
Bankers Equity Limited
Javed Omer Vohra & Company Limited
Commercial Banks
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
Modarabas
Orix Modaraba
Pharmaceuticals
Ferozsons Laboratories Limited
Food and personal care
Treet Corporation Limited
TOTAL
5.2 Shares of Javed Omer Vohra & Company Limited are in CDC Freeze Account
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No. Of Shares/
Certificates
June 30,
2020

June 30,
2019

Average Cost
June 30,
2020

June 30,
2019

Fair Value
June 30,
2020

Rupees

June 30,
2019
Rupees

1,000

500

46,838

24,505

45,500

18,890

17,000

17,000

937,105

972,425

271,320

309,910

41,000
15,000

40,000
1,000

1,638,252
259,460

1,623,054
27,796

667,480
253,200

414,400
15,730

153,900

153,900

2,023,076

2,023,076

-

-

5,100

5,100

530,323

530,323

-

-

90,000
32,000

85,000
32,000

4,252,996
2,446,492

4,200,073
2,446,492

-

5,000

25,000
15,084
13,030
40,500
23,500

17,000
20,737
7,525
25,000
17,000

2,688,386
1,762,031
1,966,716
913,354
3,490,747

2,056,383
2,906,769
1,392,481
661,068
2,646,148

1,365,000
2,385,685
1,130,743
540,270
2,561,500

1,181,330
3,517,617
1,086,836
517,000
2,235,330

1,000
2,000
8,800

1,000
2,000
8,800

9,000
26,100
1,164,611

9,000
26,100
1,164,611

16,720

16,720

-

329,560

799,200
733,760

-

702,950
640,640

393,750

1,000

-

12,097

-

7,560

-

5,000

-

73,080

-

90,000

-

2,000

-

811,884

-

600,860

-

261,077

125,020

106,820

7,000

7,000

261,077

498,914

445,562

25,313,625

23,300,941 11,593,818 11,157,923
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6

SHORT TERM FINANCES UNDER MUSHARAKAH ARRANGEMENTS - SECURED
Note
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful receivables

6.1

June 30, 2020
Rupees

June 30, 2019
Rupees

1,042,744

1,194,744

1,042,744
(637,500)

1,194,744
(637,500)

405,244

557,244

These represent investments made under musharakah arrangements on profit and loss
sharing basis and are secured by specific charge over vehicle. The share of profit of
Modaraba is 40% per annum. The details are as follows:
6.1

7

Movement in provision for doubtful
receivables is as follows:
As at beginning of the year
Recognized during the year

637,500
-

637,500
-

As at end of the year

637,500

637,500

1,016,403
55,309,704

2,516,403
55,357,955

56,326,107
(55,309,704)

57,874,358
(55,357,955)

1,016,403

2,516,403

SHORT TERM FINANCES UNDER
MURABAHAH ARRANGEMENTS - SECURED
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful receivables

7.1

These represent receivable against murbahaha transactions on deferred payment basis at a
specified margin. These are secured against mortgage of property, and personal
guarantees. Profit margin on murabahah transactions ranges from 13% to 20% (2019: 13%
to 20%) per annum receivable on monthly basis.
7.1

Movement in provision for doubtful
receivables is as follows:
As at beginning of the year
Recognized during the year
Reversed during the year

55,357,955
25

(48,251)
(48,251)

As at end of the year

55,309,704

55,382,573
(24,618)
(24,618)
55,357,955

7.1.1 The Modaraba has filed Three (2019: Three) execution petitions for claim of
Rs. 25,868,727/- (2019: 25,868,727/-) against different parties in Modaraba
Tribunal Punjab, Lahore. The management is hotly pursuing its cases in the
Court of law. There are almost no chances of any unfavorable decision(s)
against First Elite Capital Modaraba.
7.1.2 The Modaraba has filed a claim for Rs. 22,063,889/- (2019: Rs. 22,063,889/-)
against Sunrise Textile Limited (under liquidation) in High Court, Lahore. The
Modaraba has applied to the official liquidators, appointed by the honorable
Lahore High Court in C.O.No. 10/1995 for recovery of its dues.
7.1.3 The Modaraba has filed Twenty Five (2019: Twenty Five) suits for recovery of
receivables amounting to Rs. 26,475,820 (2019: Rs. 26,475,820/-) against
different parties in Banking Court, Lahore. The management is hotly pursuing
its cases in the Court of law. There are almost no chances of any unfavorable
decision(s) against First Elite Capital Modaraba.
7.1.4 The Modaraba has filed One (2019: One) criminal complaint under section 20
of the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finances) Ordinance, 2001. against
parties in Banking Court, Lahore
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8

IJARAH RENTALS RECEIVABLE - SECURED
Note
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful receivables

8.1

June 30, 2020
Rupees

June 30, 2019
Rupees

3,267,753

2,155,571

7,699,651
10,967,404

3,684,459
5,840,030

(7,699,651)

(3,684,459)

3,267,753

2,155,571

These represent rentals receivable against assets leased out under Ijarah contracts. These
are secured against vehicles registered in favour of Modaraba. The details are as follows:
8.1

Movement in provision for
doubtful receivables is as follows:
As at beginning of the year

3,684,459

2,484,652

Recognized during the year
Reversed during the year

4,605,941
(590,749)

2,013,998
(814,191)

4,015,192

1,199,807

7,699,651

3,684,459

21
As at end of the year

8.1.1 The Modaraba has filed One (2019: One) execution petition for claim of Rs.
209,616/- (2019: 209,616/-) against one party in Modaraba Tribunal Punjab,
Lahore. The management is hotly pursuing its case in the Court of law. There
are almost no chances of any unfavorable decision(s) against First Elite
Capital Modaraba.
8.2

Future Ijarah rentals receivable
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not
later than five years
Later than five years

9

37,777,627

37,065,156

40,275,322
-

59,459,013
-

78,052,949

96,524,169

48,738
21,690,660

30,139
21,698,811

PROFIT RECEIVABLE - SECURED
Considered good
Considered doubtful

Provision for doubtful receivables

9.1

21,739,398

21,728,950

(21,690,660)

(21,698,811)

48,738

30,139

This represents profit receivable on murabahah and musharikah finance
9.1

Movement in provision for
doubtful receivables is as follows:
As at beginning of the year
Recognized during the year
Reversed during the year

21,698,811
22

(8,151)
(8,151)

As at end of the year

21,690,660

21,700,043
(1,232)
(1,232)
21,698,811
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Note
10

June 30, 2020
Rupees

June 30, 2019
Rupees

543,414
1,661,992
60,450
1,506,526
32,692

497,238
1,801,968
60,450
1,954,981
10,736

58,922
2,765,941

63,229
2,765,941

2,824,863
(2,765,941)

2,829,170
(2,765,941)

ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances to employees - unsecured
but considered good
against salaries
against retirement benefits
Security deposits
Prepayments
Accrued profit on bank deposits
Other receivables - unsecured
Considered good
Considered doubtful

10.1

10.2
Provision for doubtful receivables

58,922

63,229

3,863,996

4,388,602

10.1 These represents advances to officers of the Modaraba amounting to Rs. 1,801,968
(2019: 1,801,968).
10.2 This include amounts recoverable from customers Rs 1,118,768 (2019:
Rs.1,118,768) in respect of expenses incurred by the Modaraba on their behalf.
11

12

ADVANCE INCOME TAX
Opening balance
Add : tax deducted / paid during the year
Less: provision for taxation

1,876,598
93,905
(123,065)

1,947,760
62,604
(133,766)

As at end of the year

1,847,438

1,876,598

5,170,619

7,355,825

STOCK IN TRADE
Stock in Trade

12.1

12.1 This represents stock of silage and potatoes purchased by Modaraba during the year
for the purpose of trading.
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Machinery

Office equipment

Vehicles

PARTICULARS

Machinery

Office equipment

Vehicles

PARTICULARS

2,017,000
52,215,500

156,600,319

85,000

14,622,003

-

Rupees

As at June 30,
2020

(845,000)

(85,000)
3,304,003

1,080,000

(45,886,900)

(13,777,000)

-

(32,109,900)

Rupees

Disposals

44,606,501

1,010,881

28,335

43,567,285

Rupees

As at July 01,
2019

162,928,919

2,862,003

85,000

159,981,916

Rupees

As at June 30,
2019

42,755,374

7,715,010

-

35,040,364

Rupees

As at July 01,
2018

Year ended June 30, 2019

(21,508,900) 167,714,519

COST

50,113,500

Rupees

Rupees

141,978,316

Additions

26,294,500

162,928,919

As at July 01,
2018

1,287,000

1,080,000

2,862,003

85,000

Rupees

Disposals

Year ended June 30, 2020

(20,578,900) 163,330,516

COST

23,927,500

Rupees

Rupees

159,981,916

Additions

As at July 01,
2019

ASSETS LEASED OUT UNDER IJARAH CONTRACTS

(13,183,479)

(760,500)

(68,000)

(12,354,979)

Rupees

28,362,872

1,638,582

28,335

26,695,955

Rupees

For the year

(26,511,745)

(8,342,711)

-

(18,169,034)

Rupees

Adjustment

DEPRECIATION

28,203,865

760,880

189,000

27,253,985

Rupees

Adjustment

DEPRECIATION
For the year

44,606,501

1,010,881

28,335

43,567,285

Rupees

As at June 30,
2019

59,626,887

1,011,261

149,335

58,466,291

Rupees

As at June 30,
2020

118,322,418

1,851,122

56,665

116,414,631

Rupees

As at June 30,
2019

Carrying Value

108,087,632

2,292,742

930,665

104,864,225

Rupees

As at June 30,
2020

Carrying Value
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Land - Freehold

54,000

5,878,335
32,080,701

Vehicles

54,000

-

-

2,386,264

282,815

23,533,287

Rupees

Rupees

Office equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Additions

As at July 01,
2018

-

32,134,701

PARTICULARS

-

5,878,335

Vehicles

-

-

2,440,264

282,815

-

Rupees

Rupees

23,533,287

Additions

As at July 01,
2019

Office equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Land - Freehold

PARTICULARS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

-

-

-

-

-

Rupees

Disposals

COST

-

-

-

-

-

Rupees

Disposals

COST

-

20

10

10

Rate
%age

4,849,397

3,018,054

1,644,512

186,831

-

Rupees

As at July 01,
2020

32,134,701

5,878,335

2,440,264

282,815

23,533,287

Rupees

As at June 30,
2019

20

10

10

-

Rate
%age

4,039,929

2,302,984

1,560,778

176,167

-

Rupees

As at July 01,
2018

Year ended June 30, 2019

32,134,701

5,878,335

2,440,264

282,815

23,533,287

Rupees

As at June 30,
2020

Year ended June 30, 2020

809,468

715,070

83,734

10,664

-

Rupees

For the year

-

-

-

-

-

Rupees

-

-

-

-

-

Rupees

Adjustment

DEPRECIATION

661,230

572,057

79,575

9,598

-

Rupees

Adjustment

DEPRECIATION
For the year

Net book value

4,849,397

3,018,054

1,644,512

186,831

-

Rupees

As at June 30,
2019

5,510,627

3,590,111

1,724,087

196,429

-

Rupees

27,285,304

2,860,281

795,752

95,984

23,533,287

Rupees

as at June 30,
2019

Net book value

26,624,074

2,288,224

716,177

86,386

23,533,287

Rupees

As at June 30, as at June 30,
2020
2020

Note
15

Rupees

249,308
1,362,295
89,547
18,279
12,690
223,727

524,308
1,528,781
127,073
5,334
15,902
311,302

1,955,846

2,512,700

54,981,700

49,850,095

(7,308,977)

(4,148,996)

47,672,723

45,701,099

SECURITY DEPOSITS
Security deposits under ijarah contracts
Current maturity presented
under current liabilities

16.1
17

June 30, 2019

Rupees

ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Management fee payable
Accrued expenses
Advance ijarah rentals
Withholding tax payable
Charity payable
Other payables

16

June 30, 2020

16.1

These are amounts received by Modaraba against Ijarah contracts, these are
adjusted against the value of assets at the end of Ijarah contract.

EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The amounts recognized on balance sheet
are as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation
17.1

17.1

9,066,663

8,458,040

17.2

8,458,040
803,514

9,433,938
585,839

Movement in present value of
defined benefit obligation
As at beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost on defined
benefit obligation
Benefit Paid

17.2

Remeasurements:
Actuarial (gains)/losses from
changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses from
changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments
17.3

8,691,365

-

-

(506,255)

97,242
(330,567)
(233,325)

9,066,663

8,458,040

803,514

585,839

Expenses to be charged to P&L
Current service cost
Interest cost on defined
benefit obligation

17.3

755,288
(2,083,700)

9,572,918

25,574
(531,829)

As at the end of the year
17.2

482,564
(171,200)

482,564

755,288

1,286,078

1,341,127

-

-

Remeasurements recognized
in other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gains) / losses from changes
in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains) / losses from
changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

25,574
(531,829)

97,242
(330,567)

(506,255)

(233,325)
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Note

June 30, 2020
Rupees

June 30, 2019
Rupees

17.4 Significant actuarial assumptions
Discount rate used for interest
cost charged in P&L
Discount rate used for year end obligation

9.50%
9.50%

9.00%
14.25%

Salary
Salary
Salary
Salary
Salary
Salary
Salary

7.50%
7.50%
7.50%
7.50%
7.50%
7.50%

12.25%
12.25%
12.25%
12.25%
12.25%
12.25%

increase
increase
increase
increase
increase
increase
increase

used for year end obligation
FY 2020
FY 2021
FY 2022
FY 2023
FY 2024
FY 2025 onwards

Next salary is increased at

July 01, 2020

Mortality rates

Withdrawal rates
Retirement assumption

July 01, 2019

SLIC (2001 2005) Setback
1 Year

SLIC (2001 2005) Setback
1 Year

Age-based (per
Appendix)
Age 60

Age-based (per
appendix)
Age 60

17.5 Historical information
June 30,
2020

June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

June 30,
2017

June 30,
2016

9,066,663

8,458,040

9,433,938

8,286,565

6,754,166

1.07

2.76

0.88

6.39

0.26

Historical information
Present value of defined
benefit obligation

Rupees

Actuarial adjustment
arising during the year

17.6

%

Future expectation
The estimated expenses to be charged to P & L during the year ending June 30,
2021 amounts to Rs.1.2 million. The actual cost will be determined after
valuation of the Fund as at June 30, 2021 when the actuarial gains and losses
arising during the year ending June 30, 2021 will be available.

17.7 Additional disclosure items
Year end sensitivity analysis (± 100 bps)
on defined benefit obligation
Discount rate + 100 bps
Discount rate - 100 bps
Salary increase + 100 bps
Salary increase - 100 bps
Average duration of the defined
benefit obligation
18

8,114,663
9,837,329
9,837,329
8,477,329

8,042,906
8,911,860
8,926,786
8,022,189

5 years

5 years

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
18.1 Contingencies
18.1.1 The Modaraba received a show notice bearing bar code no.
100000010651796 dated 14-03-2016 issued u/s 182 of the Ordinance
wherein Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue intended to impose
the penalty of Rs.2,500/- per day of default for failing to file the
Withholding Statement for the month of December 2015.The
Modaraba through its Authorized Representative (AR) has factually
contested the above notice and explained the problem in IRIS system
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due to which the Modaraba was unable to file the Withholding
Statement within the prescribed period. No further Correspondence
has been received till date in this regard.
18.1.2 For the Assessment year 2002-2003 the assessment was made by the
Taxation Officer/Officer Inland Revenue making additions under
different heads and tax liability determined at Rs. 5,123,287/- which
was reduced to Rs. 7,765/- by the learned Commissioner Inland
Revenue Appeals (CIR-A). The Tax department filed a second appeal
before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (Learned Tribunal) who
vide order ITA No. 1844/LB/2006 dated 28-05-2008 upheld the Order
of CIR (A) and dismissed the departmental appeal. Resultantly, a net
tax liability of Rs.7,765/- was deposited on 07-11-2008 and confirmed
by the tax department through letter bearing reference 188/unit/05
dated 07-11-2008.
The Tax department had filed a reference to the Honorable Lahore
High Court against the Order passed by the Learned Tribunal in
respect of "Provision for Doubtful Debts", "Provision for Gratuity" and
"Excess Perquisites" whereby the disallowances are 2,781,440/-,
87,290/- and 323,113/- respectively.
18.1.3 The Modaraba has filed appeals before the Learned Tribunal in respect
of Assessment Years 1998- 99, 1999-00 & 2000-01 against the orders
of the CIR-A who upheld certain issues and some were remanded back
to the Taxation Officer/Officer Inland Revenue. The case was decided
in favor of the Modaraba whereby Learned Tribunal deleted
additions/disallowances of ‘Depreciation Allowance’, ‘Excess
Perquisites u/s 24(i) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 1979. (Repealed
Ordinance)’ & ‘Fee & Subscription’ etc., except the issue of allowability
of “Provision for Doubtful Debts/Doubtful Morabaha” which was sent
back to the Taxation Officer for verification of claim through combined
order ITA No. 4575/LB/06 & ITA No. 1193 &5568/LB/04 dated 12-112008. The Taxation Officer/Officer Inland Revenue had to finalize the
re-assessment proceedings within one year from the end of the
financial year in which he was served with the order i.e. upto 30-062010 as per Section 124(2) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. No
intimation has yet been received from the tax department regarding
Re-assessment Proceedings or filing of Reference to the Honorable
High Court.
18.1.4 The Modaraba filled its Common Reporting Standards Return (CRS
Report) As the Tax Year 2018 on 13-05-2019.
The proceedings were initiated by Assistant Commissioncr Inland
Revenue, E&C, Unit-07, Range-02, Zone-06. CRTO, Lahore vide notice
bearing bar code No. 100000059200918 Dated 25-09-2019 under
Section 182(2) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 wherein the officer
intended to impose penalty for late filling of CRS Return. The
Modaraba through its AR (Authorized Representative) complied with
the above notice through its replies bearing reference Nos. IT/A74/19/931 dated 04-11-2019 and IT/A-74/19/938 dated 07-11-2019
claiming that the Return was filed within Due date for filing of retun for
the CRS. The Learned ACIR passed the Order bearing barcode No.
100000064637626 dated 29-11-2019 and imposed penalty of Rs
1,230,000/-. Being aggrieved from the impunged order the Modaraba
preferred appeal before Commissioncr Inland Revenue Appeals VI,
Lahore. This appeal was heard on 22-06-2020 and the appellate order
is awaiting till date.

Note
18.2 Commitments

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

Rupees

Rupees

Nil

Nil
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Note
19

June 30, 2019
Rupees

100,000,000

100,000,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND
PAID-UP CERTIFICATE CAPITAL
Modaraba certificates of Rs. 10 each
10,000,000 (2019: 10,000,000) certificates
issued for cash
1,340,000 (2019: 1,340,000) certificates
issued as full paid bonus certificates

20

June 30, 2020
Rupees

13,400,000

13,400,000

113,400,000

113,400,000

32,018,014

32,018,014

OTHER RESERVES
Statutory reserve
Unrealized loss on Available for
sale financial assets

20.1

(9,983,417)

(8,406,628)

22,034,597

23,611,386

20.1 These include statutory reserves which represent profits set aside by the
Modaraba to comply with the Prudential Regulations for Modarabas issued by
the SECP. These regulations require the Modaraba to transfer not less than 20%
and not more than 50% of its after tax profit till such time that reserves equal
100% of the paid up capital. Thereafter, a sum not less than 5% of the after tax
profit is to be transferred. During the current year, the Modaraba has transferred
an amount of Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. Nil) which represents Nil (2019: Nil) of the
profit/loss after taxation for the year.
21

INCOME FROM IJARAH FINANCING
Income from ijarah rental
Ijarah income (suspended) /
recovered - net

8.1 & 21.1

Gain on disposal of ijarah assets

37,370,874

37,318,024

(4,015,192)

(1,199,807)

33,355,682
261,725

36,118,217
1,170,463

33,617,407

37,288,680

21.1 This represents ijarah income recovered / (suspended) in accordance with the
prudential regulations applicable to the Modaraba.
22

INCOME FROM MURABAHAH FINANCING
Income from murabahah
Murabahah income recovered

9.1 & 22.1

194,573
8,151

411,002
1,232

202,724

412,234

22.1 This represents morabahah income recovered in accordance with the prudential
regulations applicable to the Modaraba.
23

RETURN ON INVESTMENTS
Dividend income-gross
Gain on sale of investments-net

24

1,173,223
2,444,104

1,397,662

3,617,327

535,065

435,238

535,065

435,238

OTHER INCOME
Return on bank deposits
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487,814
909,848

Note
25

June 30, 2020
Rupees

June 30, 2019
Rupees

ADMINISTRATIVE AND
GENERAL EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Rent, rates and taxes
Utilities
Repair and maintenance
Printing and stationery
Communication
Postage
Travelling and conveyance
Insurance
Advertisement
Fee and subscription
Newspapers, books and periodicals
Entertainment
Auditors' remuneration
Legal and professional charges
Depreciation
Zakat and charity
Others

25.1

25.1

25.2
14

9,133,328
42,750
428,487
537,303
351,550
253,336
115,328
385,721
146,736
11,900
572,025
6,335
89,941
362,500
1,912,905
661,230
13,190
199,695

9,215,403
71,395
469,578
533,850
705,800
264,006
137,523
572,370
207,424
51,480
622,851
6,498
141,693
362,500
2,796,855
809,467
17,490
309,965

15,224,260

17,296,148

These include charge in respect of employees retirement benefits amounting
to Rs.1,286,078/- (2019: Rs. 1,341,127/-).

25.2 Auditors' remuneration
Annual statutory Audit
Half yearly review
Review report under Code of
Corporate Governance
Out of pocket expenses

26

250,000
52,500

250,000
52,500

45,000
15,000

45,000
15,000

362,500

362,500

MANAGEMENT FEE
The Modaraba Management Company is entitled to a fee for services rendered to the
Modaraba under the provisions of the Modaraba Companies and Modarabas (Floatation
and Control) Ordinance, 1980 upto a maximum of 10% per annum of the net annual
profits of the Modaraba.
June 30, 2020
Rupees
-

27

June 30, 2019
Rupees
-

TAXATION
Current taxation
For the year
Prior years

208,032
-

346,502
133,766

208,032

480,268
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Unit
28

June 30, 2020
Rupees

June 30, 2019
Rupees

(LOSS)/PROFIT PER CERTIFICATE BASIC AND DILUTED
(Loss)/profit attributable to
certificate holders

Rupees

Weighted average number of
certificates outstanding
during the year
No. of certificates
(Loss)/profit per certificate

Rupees

(5,272,211)

11,340,000
(0.46)

(4,370,503)

11,340,000
(0.39)

There is no diluting effect on the basic earnings per certificate of the Modaraba
June 30, 2020
Rupees
29

June 30, 2019
Rupees

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(Loss)/profit before taxation

(5,064,179)

(3,890,235)

Adjustments for non-cash
and other items
Depreciation of assets under own use
Depreciation of assets leased out
under ijarah contracts
Gain on sale of investments
Dividend income
Gain on transfer of assets leased out
Provision for employees retirement benefits
Reversal of provision for doubtful
murabahah receivables

Operating profit before changes
in working capital

661,230

809,468

28,203,865
(909,848)
(487,814)
(261,725)
1,286,078

28,362,872
(2,444,104)
(1,173,223)
(1,158,555)
1,341,127

(48,251)

(24,618)

28,443,535

25,712,967

23,379,356

21,822,732

Changes in working capital
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Finances under murabahah arrangements
Finances under musharakah arrangements
Ijarah rentals receivable
Profit receivable
Advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables
Stock in Trade
Security deposits
Accrued and other liabilities

1,548,251
152,000
(1,112,182)
(18,599)

7,069,567
190,000
(866,796)
6,042

524,606
2,185,206
5,131,605
(556,854)

1,826,258
(7,355,825)
7,147,954
(403,558)

7,854,033

7,613,642

Cash generated from operations

31,233,389

29,436,374

Note

June 30, 2020
Rupees

June 30, 2019
Rupees

4

19,171,190

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

38

6,623,240
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TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
The related party of the Modaraba comprise of the modaraba management company,
directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties are
disclosed below.
31.1 Transaction with related party during the year
June 30, 2020
Rupees
Name

June 30, 2019
Rupees

Nature of
relationship

Nature of
transaction

Crescent Modaraba
Management Company
Limited

Management
Company

Profit
Distribution

-

Crescent Modaraba
Management Company
Limited

Management
Company

Management
fee

-

Muhammad Javed Amin

Director

Profit distribution

-

57,133

340,200

-

Shahana Javed Amin

Director

Profit distribution

-

13,500

Rukhsana Javed Amin

Director

Profit distribution

-

2,610

Ghazanfar Farrokh

Director

Profit distribution

-
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31.2 Payable to related parties
Name
Crescent Modaraba
Management Company
Limited

Nature of
relationship

Accounts
Balances

Management
Company

Management fee
payable

249,308

2020

Note

32

524,308

2019

Loans and
receivables
Rupees

Available for
sale financial
assets
Rupees

Loans and
receivables
Rupees

Available for
sale financial
assets
Rupees

19,171,190
405,244
1,016,403
3,267,753
48,738
2,205,406
60,450
58,922

11,593,818
-

6,623,240
557,244
2,516,403
2,155,571
30,139
2,299,206
60,450
63,229

11,157,923
-

26,234,106

11,593,818

14,305,482

11,157,923

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
32.1

Financial instruments by class and category
Financial assets
Cash and bank balances
4
Short term investments
5
Finances under musharakah arrangements 6
Finances under murabahah arrangements 7
Ijarah rentals receivable
8
Profit receivable
9
Advances to employees
10
Security deposits
10
Other receivables
10

Note

2020
Financial
liabilities at
Amortized cost
Rupees

2019
Financial
liabilities at
amortized cost
Rupees

15
15
15
15

1,362,295
249,308
12,690
223,727

1,528,781
524,308
15,902
311,302

1,848,020

2,380,293

Financial liabilities
Accrued expenses
Management fee payable
Charity payable
Other payables

32.2 Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or liability be
settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.
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As at the reporting date, fair values of all financial instruments are considered
to approximate their carrying amounts.
32.2.1 Methods of determining fair values
Fair values of financial instruments for which prices are available
from the active market are measured by reference to those market
prices. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities with no active
market are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis based on
inputs from other than observable market.
32.2.2 Discount/interest rates used for determining fair values
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, when
applicable, are based on the government yield curve as at the
reporting date plus an adequate credit spread.
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FINANCIAL RISK EXPOSURE AND MANAGEMENT
The Modaraba's objective in managing risks is creation and protection of certificate
holders' value. Risk is inherent in the Modaraba's activities, but it is managed through a
process of ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring subject to risk limits
and other controls. The process of risk management is critical to Modaraba's continuing
profitability. The Modaraba is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising
from the financial instruments it holds.
The Modaraba primarily invests in ijarah assets, musharakah, murabahah and
diversified portfolio of listed securities. These are subject to varying degrees of risks.
The way these risks affect revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and forecast
transactions of the Modaraba and the manner in which these risks are managed is as
follows:
33.1 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Modaraba, if the counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its obligations.
33.1.1 Maximum exposure to credit risk
The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is as
follows:

Note

June 30, 2020
Rupees

June 30, 2019
Rupees

Loans and receivables
Cash at bank
4
Finances under musharakah
arrangements
6
Finances under murabahah
arrangements
7
Ijarah rentals receivable
8
Profit receivable
9
Other receivables
10

19,014,485

6,565,296

1,042,744

1,194,744

56,326,107
10,967,404
21,739,398
2,824,863

57,874,358
5,840,030
21,728,950
2,829,170

111,915,001

96,032,548

33.1.2 Concentration of credit risk
The Modaraba identifies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of
counter party and balances with customers are further analyzed by
reference to industry distribution. Maximum exposure to credit risk by type
of counterparty is as follows:
Customers and other parties
Banking companies and
financial institutions
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92,900,516

89,467,252

19,014,485

6,565,296

111,915,001

96,032,548

Concentration of credit risk in respect of balances with customers and other
parties by industrial distribution is as follows:
2020

Finances
Finances
Ijarah
under
under
rentals
Murabahah Musharakah
Profit
Receivable arrangements arrangements receivables
Rupees
Services
Textile
Transport
Electrical and
engineering
Packaging
Individuals

Others
receivables

Total

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

81,500
133,162
-

65,500
23,911,160
-

1,042,744

533,301
14,288,302
923,610

208,383
476,036
509,804

888,684
38,808,660
2,476,158

10,752,742

3,180,619
29,168,828

-

255,647
3,013,864
2,724,673

132,928
1,497,712

255,647
6,327,411
39,921,570
4,222,385

10,967,404

56,326,107

1,042,744

21,739,398

2,824,863

92,900,515

2019

Finances
Finances
Ijarah
under
under
rentals
Murabahah Musharakah
Receivable arrangements arrangements
Rupees

Profit
receivables

Others
receivables

Total
Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

Services
40,400
Textile
133,162
Transport
Electrical and engineering
Packaging
Individuals
5,666,468

65,500
23,911,156
3,180,619
30,717,083

1,194,744
-

533,301
14,288,302
923,610
255,647
3,013,864
2,714,226

212,690
476,036
509,804
132,928
1,497,712

851,891
38,808,656
2,628,158
255,647
6,327,411
40,595,489

5,840,030

57,874,358

1,194,744

21,728,950

2,829,170

89,467,252

33.1.3

Credit quality and impairment
Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit
ratings, except for balances with customers where credit quality is assessed
by reference to historical information about counterparty default rates and
present ages.
33.1.3(a)

Counterparties with external credit ratings
These include banking companies, which are counterparties to
cash deposits. These counterparties have reasonably high
credit ratings as determined by various credit rating agencies
and management does not expect non-performance by these
counterparties on their obligations to the Modaraba.

33.1.3(b)

Counterparties without external credit ratings
These include customers which are counter parties to finances
under murabahah, musharakah and ijarah arrangements,
profit receivable thereon and other receivable from parties.
The Modaraba is exposed to credit risk in respect of these
balances. The analysis of ages of customer balances as at the
reporting date is as follows:
2020

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due by upto 90 days
Past due by 90 to 180 days
Past due by 180 days to 1 year
Past due by 1 to 2 years
Past due by 2 to 3 years
Past due by 3 years or more

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Impairment

Rupees
58,922
6,044,099
1,021,556
1,796,991
1,915,618
429,996
81,633,333
92,900,515

2019
Gross
carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Impairment

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

1,789,982
959,182
1,796,991
1,915,618
429,996
81,211,687

2,594,598
2,154,342
602,991
664,530
1,179,060
487,496
81,784,235

602,991
664,530
1,179,060
471,089
81,226,992

88,103,456

89,467,252

84,144,662
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The Management believes that the existing impairment allowance is adequate and no further allowance is
necessary.
33.1.4

Collateral held
The Modaraba's investments in ijarah assets are secured by registration of title
to the underlying assets in the name of Modaraba. Particulars of collateral held
against financing under musharakah and murabahah arrangements and profit
receivable thereon is referred to in relevant notes to the financial statements.

33.1.5

Credit risk management
The Modaraba's portfolio of loans and receivables is broadly diversified and
transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties
thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk. The Modaraba
does not have significant concentration of credit risk with a single
counterparty. Formal policies and procedures of credit management and
administration of receivables are established and executed. In monitoring
customer credit risk, the ageing profile of total receivable balances and
individually significant balances, along with collection activities are reported
Management Company on a monthly basis. High risk customers are identified
and restrictions are placed on future financing and credit period extensions.

33.2

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Modaraba will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. Given the nature of Modaraba's operations and existing financial liabilities, the
Modaraba's exposure to liquidity risk is very limited and liquidity risk management is limited
to ensuring that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational cash flows.

33.3

Market risk
33.3.1

Currency risk

33.3.2

Profit rate risk

The Modaraba is not exposed to currency risk.
Profit rate risk is the risk that fair values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in profit rates. The Modaraba's
exposure to profit rate risk is limited as all of its investments in ijarah assets,
musharakah, murabahah are fixed rate instruments.
33.3.3

Price risk
Price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, other than
those arising from profit rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or
factors affecting all similar financial instruments.
The Modaraba is exposed to unfavorable changes in the fair value of the
investments in listed equity securities as a result of the changes in the equity
prices. The particulars of investments exposed to price risk as at the reporting
date are referred to note to the financial statements.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Modaraba's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. The Management Company monitors the return on
assets of the Modaraba, including finances under ijarah, murabahah and musharakah arrangements
and investments in capital market which are managed through appropriate risk management
policies. For major aspects of capital management, the Modaraba adheres to the requirements of the
Ordinance, Rules and Regulations including the requirements of statutory reserve. The level of profit
distribution to certificate holders is kept at the required level in order to avail the tax exemption.
There were no changes in the Modaraba's approach to capital management during the year.
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REMUNERATION OF OFFICERS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES
The aggregate amount charged to profit or loss account and statement of comprehensive income in
respect of all officers and other employees on account of managerial remuneration, allowances and
perquisites, post employment benefits and the number of such executives and employees is as
follows:
2020

Managerial remuneration
Allowances and perquisites
Post employment benefits
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Officers

Other
Employees

Total

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

2,439,600
1,843,733
804,296

2,121,961
1,441,956
481,782

4,561,561
3,285,689
1,286,078

5,087,629

4,045,699

9,133,328

Number of employees at year end

3

10

13

Average no. of employees
during the year

3

10

13

2019

Managerial remuneration
Allowances and perquisites
Post employment benefits

36

Officers

Other
Employees

Total

Rupees

Rupees

Rupees

2,404,800
1,796,910
710,797

2,178,407
1,494,159
630,330

4,583,207
3,291,069
1,341,127

4,912,507

4,302,896

9,215,403

Number of employees at year end

3

10

13

Average no. of employees
during the year

4

11

15

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
36.1 Valuation of investment portfolio
Global as well as Pakistan stock market witnessed significant decline in the first quarter of
2020. The stock market volatility and declining share prices will adversely affect the valuation
of the investment portfolio and profitability.
36.2 Liquidity
The liquidity position stressed as a ramification of delayed recoveries and defaults.
36.3 Impairment of credit portfolio
The forced shutdown and economic uncertainty will increase the credit risk. The delays and
defaults of portfolios are expected to increase the receivables. Further, the impaired portfolio
will also negatively impact earnings
36.4 SECP defers the effective date of IFRS 9 for NBFCs
SECP, through, S.R.O. 273 (I)/2020 (dated March 30, 2020) has deferred the effective date of
IFRS 9 for NBFCs. NBFCs previously were required to apply IFRS-9 for reporting period/year
ending on or after June 30, 2020. Now IFRS 9 for NBFCs shall be applicable for reporting
period/year ending on or after June 30, 2021.
36.5 SECP grants relaxation to Lending NBFC from Restructuring/ Rescheduling of
facilities
SECP, through circular No. 9 of 2020 (dated March 31, 2020) in order to facilitate the lending
non-bank finance sector owing to outbreak of COVID-19 allowed the following relaxations to
all lending NBFCs including Non-Banking Micro Finance Companies (NBMFCs):
• NBFC may defer the repayment of principal loan amount for one year on written request of
borrower received before June 30, 2020 provided that markup will continue to be paid as per
agreed terms and such deferment will not be reported as restructuring in ECIB;
• Where such borrower is unable to service markup amount or need deferment exceeding
one year, facilities may be rescheduled/ restructured upon their request. If the rescheduling/
restructuring is done with in 90 days of loans being overdue in case of microfinance and 180
days in any other finance facility. Such facilities will continue to be treated as regular and
reported in the ECIB accordingly;
• NBFC shall not classify the financing facilities of such borrower who have requested
deferment or rescheduling/ restructuring as mentioned above.
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DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management
Company on September 30, 2020.
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RECOVERABLE AMOUNTS AND IMPAIRMENT
Impairment on ijarah, murabahah and musharakah finances, and profit receivable thereon is
recognized in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations for Modarabas pertaining
to classification and provisioning. In the opinion of the management, no further impairment, in
addition to that already recognized in accordance with Prudential Regulations, is necessary. Further,
the recoverable amounts of all other assets/cash generating units are equal to or exceed their
carrying amounts, unless stated otherwise in these financial statements.
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GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
Comparative figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of
comparison.

For Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited
(Management Company of First Elite Capital Modaraba)

Chairman

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 Year
ended June 30, 2020
The Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited (“The Management Company”) is a Public Limited Company and is not
listed on Stock Exchange. However, the First Elite Capital Modaraba (“the Modaraba”) is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited. The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited is responsible for the
management of the affairs of the Modaraba.
The Management Company of the Modaraba has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:1.
The total number of directors are 7 as per the following,
a. Male
:5
b. Female
:2
2.
The composition of the board is as follows:
NAME
CATEGORY
Mr. Muneeb Ahmed Dar
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Aamir Iftikhar Khan
Executive Director
Dr. Sardar Ahmad Khan
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ghazanfar Farrokh
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Muhammad Javed Amin
Non-Executive Director
Mrs. RukhsanaJaved Amin
Non-Executive Director
Mrs. ShahanaJaved Amin
Non-Executive Director
3.
The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than Seven listed companies, including
this company;
4.
The Management Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Management Company along with its supporting policies and procedures;
5.
The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their date of
approval or updating is maintained by the company;
6.
All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the board of
directors of the Management Company/certificate holders of the Modaraba, (where ever applicable), as empowered by
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the “Act”) and these Regulations;
7.
The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board
for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the board;
8.
The board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act
and these Regulations;
9.
The Board has arranged Directors' Training program for the following:
a)
Mr. Muneeb Ahmed Dar
b)
Mr. Ghazanfar Farrokh
c)
Mrs. ShahanaJaved Amin
d)
Mr. Aamir Iftikhar Khan
10.
The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations;
11.
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board;
12.
The board has formed committees comprising of members given below.
a)
Audit Committee
Mr. Ghazanfar Farrokh
Chairman
Mr. Muneeb Ahmed Dar
Member
Mrs. ShahanaJaved Amin
Member
b) HR and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Muneeb Ahmed Dar
Chairman
Mr. Aamir Iftikhar Khan
Member
Mr. Ghazanfar Farrokh
Member
13.
The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for
compliance;
14.
The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following,a)
Audit Committee
Quarterly
b)
HR and Remuneration Committee
Annually
15.
The board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/S Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq Chartered
Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the
policies and procedures of the Management Company;
16.
The statutory auditors of the Modaraba have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and
the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of
the company;
17.
The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that
they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard;
18.
We confirm that all requirements of Regulations 3, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been complied with;
Currently there are no independent directors but the company proposes to elect the independent directors in the next
election of directors which are due in November 2020 as relaxed in Section 6(2) of the Regulations.
19.
We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with except for the requirement that the
position of Chief Financial officer and Company Secretary has been held by the same person, as the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 ('Regulations”) allowed the Companies to either comply or explain
the reason otherwise. Therefore, the Modaraba has adopted explanation approach as the management is of the view,
that the current CFO and Company Secretary is suitably qualified and professionally capable to act and fulfill the duties
and responsibilities of both the roles. In addition, it is also a cost effective measure that is in the better interest of the
certificate holders of the Modaraba, therefore hiring a separate person for both position is not feasible.

MUNEEBAHMED DAR
CHAIRMAN
Date: September 30, 2020
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PATTERN OF CERTIFICATE HOLDERS AS AT JUNE 30, 2020
NUMBER OF
CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

CERTIFICATE HOLDINGS
FROM
TO

TOTAL
CERTIFICATE HELD

2,299

1

100

110,396

431

101

500

141,342

1,145

501

1,000

679,305

343

1,001

5,000

827,388

90

5,001

10,000

711,168

42

10,001

15,000

512,999

24

15,001

20,000

435,391

16

20,001

25,000

380,761

16

25,001

30,000

447,995

6

30,001

35,000

202,718

8

35,001

40,000

306,987

4

40,001

45,000

172,550

8

45,001

50,000

384,507

3

50,001

55,000

158,253

3

55,001

60,000

170,200

1

60,001

65,000

63,000

2

65,001

70,000

135,078

2

75,001

80,000

158,000

2

80,001

85,000

165,427

3

95,001

100,000

300,000

2

120,001

125,000

248,000

2

165,001

170,000

332,000

1

180,001

185,000

183,500

1

190,001

195,000

190,443

1

200,001

205,000

203,000

1

225,001

230,000

226,500

1

295,001

300,000

300,000

1

390,001

395,000

392,620

1

530,001

535,000

531,972

2

1,130,001

1,135,000

2,268,500

4,461

11,340,000
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CATEGORIES OF CERTIFICATE HOLDING
AS AT JUNE 30, 2020
CATEGORIES OF
CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

NUMBERS CERTIFICATE PERCENTAGE
HELD

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES,
UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES
Crescent Modaraba Management Co. Ltd.

1

1,134,000

10.00

CDC-Trustee National Investment (Unit) Trust 1

392,620

3.46

DIRECTORS, CEO AND THEIR SPOUSES
AND MINOR CHILDREN
4

244,250

2.15

NIT

Mr. Muhammad Javed Amin
Mrs. Shahana Javed Amin
Mrs. Rukhsana Javed Amin
Mr. Ghazanfar Farrokh

190,443
45,000
8,700
107

EXECUTIVE

-

-

-

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND
CORPORATIONS
State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

1

531,972

4.69

BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE
INSTITUTIONS, NON BANKING
FINANCE COMPANIES, INSURANCE
COMPANIES, TAKAFUL, MODARABAS

9

86,616

0.76

JOINT STOCK COMPANIES
INDIVIDUALS
TOTAL:

21

246,995

2.18

4,424

8,703,547

76.75

4,461

11,340,000

100.00

CERTIFICATES HOLDERS HOLDING FIVE
PERCENTAGE OR MORE INTEREST IN THE
LISTED COMPANY.
Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited

1,134,000

10.00

Mr. Nauman Rathore

1,134,500

10.00
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KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA
YEAR

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Rupees in million

Revenues

38.37

45.42

69.31

(Loss)/Profit after
Management Fee
& Taxation

(5.27)

(4.37)

4.72

113.40

113.40

113.40

113.40

113.40 113.40

Certificate Holder's Equity 106.90

113.25

127.95

124.94

130.45 142.19

17.45

16.44

15.94

15.14

134.71

145.61

141.88

108.87

Current Assets

46.39

36.66

48.93

77.15

96.73

99.52

Dividend (%)

-

-

3.00

-

-

5.50

(Loss)/Earning
per Certificate

(0.46)

(0.39)

0.42

(0.24)

(0.27)

0.76

Break up Value

9.43

9.99

11.28

11.02

11.50

12.54

Paid up Capital

Current Liabilities
Fixed Assets

52.20

49.77

58.55

(2.77)

(3.02)

8.58

17.31

27.50

85.05 103.83
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT
To the Certificate Holders of First Elite Capital Modaraba
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the
Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Crescent Modaraba
Management Company Limited, the management company of First
Elite Capital Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance
with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to
plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required
to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.
The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee,
and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of
Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also
ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies
Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by
the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We
have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's
process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to
believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the
Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements
contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2020.

Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Partner: Shahid Mohsin Shaikh - FCA
Date: September 30, 2020
Place: Lahore
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Shariah Advisor's Report
I have conducted the Shariah review of First Elite Capital
Modaraba managed by Crescent Modaraba Management
Company Limited for the year ended June 30, 2020 in accordance
with the requirements of the Shariah Compliance and Shariah
Audit Mechanism for Modarabas. Based on my review I report
that in my opinion:
i.

The Modaraba has introduced a mechanism which has
strengthened the Shariah compliance, in letter and spirit and
the systems, procedures and policies adopted by the
Modaraba are in line with the Shariah principles.

ii.

Following were the major developments in respect of Shariah
that took place during the year.

· TheModaraba has introduced a mechanism for trading under
the Shariah Principles with the guidance of Shariah Advisor.
· Staff training sessions of concerned staff have been
conducted by Shariah Advisor to follow the steps of Shariah
Principles about Ijarah and trading.
iii.

I confirm that the financing agreement(s) entered into by the
Modaraba are Shariah compliant and the financing
agreement(s) have been executed on the formats as
approved by the Religious Board and all the related
conditions have been met;

iv.

To the best of my information and according to the
explanations given to me, the business transactions
undertaken by the Modaraba and all other matters incidental
thereto are in conformity with the Shariah requirements as
well as the requirements of the Prospectus, Islamic Financial
Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
Shariah Compliance and Shariah Audit Regulations for
Modarabas.

v.

The Modaraba does not offer any deposit raising products
and therefore no review has been done in respect to profit
sharing ratio.

vi.

The Charity amounts have been credited to charity account.

Recommendation(s)
· A few remaining Non Shariah Non Tradable equity
instruments will be disposed off when they would be tradable
equity instruments.
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· Non Shariah Compliant shares of Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim
Limited should be disposed off at the earliest.
· The management should maintain its efforts to comply with
rulings of Shariah in its business operations and future
transactions.
Conclusion
Alhamdulillah, after introduction of Shariah Compliance and Shariah
Audit Mechanism for Modarabas by Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the Management of First Elite Capital
Modaraba has effectively shown its sincerity to comply with Shariah
Rulings. According to my best knowledge the business operations of
First Elite Capital Modaraba are Shariah compliant.
May Allah bless us with the best Tawfeeq to accomplish his cherished
tasks, make us successful in this world and in the hereafter, and
forgive our mistakes.

Mufti Muhammad Umar
Shariah Advisor
Date:September30, 2020
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING
Notice is hereby given that 21st Annual Review Meeting of certificate
holders of First Elite Capital Modaraba will be held on Tuesday,
October 27, 2020 at 2:30 p.m. at 50-A, Garden Block, New Garden
Town, Lahore to review the performance of the Modaraba for the year
ended June 30, 2020. The Certificate Holders whose names appear
on the Register of Certificate Holders of the Modaraba as on October
20, 2020 will be eligible to attend the Meeting.

Muhammad Arif Hilal
Company Secretary
Crescent Modaraba Management Company Limited
Manager of First Elite Capital Modaraba
Date: October 06, 2020
Place: LAHORE
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50-A, Garden Block,
New Garden Town, Lahore - Pakistan
Tel: 35442735-37
Fax: 35442738
E-mail: info@fecm.com.pk
Web: www.fecm.com.pk

